
 

Borough of Telford and Wrekin 

Health Scrutiny Committee 

Thursday 25 April 2024 

2.00 pm 

Council Chamber, Third Floor, Southwater One, Telford, TF3 4JG 

   

 

Democratic Services: 

 

Sam Yarnall 01952 382193 

Media Enquiries: 

 

Corporate Communications 01952 382406 

 

Committee Members: 

 

Councillors D R W White (Chair), O Vickers (Vice-Chair), 

N A Dugmore, S Handley, L Lewis, G L Offland, R Sahota, 

S Syrda and J Urey 

 Co-optees H Knight, D Saunders and S Fogell 

 
 Agenda Page 

 
1.0   Apologies for Absence 

 
 

2.0   Declarations of Interest 
 

 

3.0   Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
To confirm the minutes of the previous meeting held on 14 
March 2024. 
 

3 - 8 

4.0   Update from the JHOSC 
 

 

5.0   Update from the Health & Wellbeing Board 
 

 

6.0   CQC Update 
 
To receive a verbal update on the upcoming CQC inspection. 
 
 
 

Verbal Report 

Public Document Pack

Page 1



 

7.0   Big Conversation 
 
To receive a report on the Big Conversation campaign from the 
Shropshire, Telford and Wrekin Integrated Care Board. 
 

To Follow 

8.0   Pharmacy First 
 
To receive a verbal update on the Pharmacy First Scheme from 
the Integrated Care Board, Shropshire, Telford and Wrekin. 
 

Verbal Report 

9.0   Communications, Marketing and Engagement in the NHS 
 
To receive a report on communications, marketing and 
engagement in the NHS from the Shropshire, Telford and 
Wrekin Integrated Care Board. 
 

To Follow 

10.0   Work Programme 
 
To review the Health Scrutiny Committee Work Programme. 
 

9 - 14 

11.0   Chair's Update 
 

 

 
 
If you are reading these papers on an electronic device you have saved the Council 
£15.22 and saved 6.1kg of CO2, based on average agenda printing costs for the 2022/23 
municipal year. 

Page 2



 

 

HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
Minutes of a meeting of the Health Scrutiny Committee held on Thursday 
14 March 2024 at 2.00 pm in Council Chamber, Third Floor, Southwater 

One, Telford, TF3 4JG 
 

 
Present: Councillors D R W White (Chair), O Vickers (Vice-Chair), 

N A Dugmore and S Handley 
Co-Optee H Knight 

 
Also Present:  Councillor K Middleton (Cabinet Member: Healthy, Safer 

& Stronger Communities & Partnerships) 
 
In Attendance:  L Noakes (Director: Health & Wellbeing, Telford & Wrekin 

Council), N Williams (Associate Director: Primary Care, 
Shropshire, Telford and Wrekin Integrated Care Board), 
H Onions (Public Health & Civil Resilience Service 
Delivery Manager, Telford & Wrekin Council), S Hardwick 
(Lead Lawyer: Litigation & Regulatory, Telford & Wrekin 
Council), P Starkey (Senior Democracy Officer (Scrutiny), 
Telford & Wrekin Council) and S Yarnall (Democracy 
Officer (Scrutiny) Telford & Wrekin Council) 

 
Apologies:  Councillor L Lewis, G L Offland, S Syrda and J Urey  

Co-Optees D Saunders and S Fogell 
 
HAC-31 Declarations of Interest 
 
None. 
 
HAC-32 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
Members discussed the possibility of having a regular update on hospital 
discharge figures that was mentioned at the last meeting. Officers informed 
Members that this will be considered and they would be updated in due 
course. 
 
RESOLVED – that the minutes of the meeting held on 12 December 2023 
be confirmed and signed by the Chair.   
 
HAC-33 Update from the Health & Wellbeing Board 
 
The Director: Health & Wellbeing provided an update to the Committee on the 
work of the Health & Wellbeing Board. Members were informed that the next 
meeting of the Health & Wellbeing Board was scheduled to take place on 21 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



 

 

March 2024. The agenda included the Annual Public Health report which 
would be circulated to Members at the end of this meeting. Items for the next 
Health and Wellbeing Board agenda were discussed including an update on 
the Alcohol and Drugs Strategy.  
 
Following the formal update, Members asked the following question to the 
Director of Health & Wellbeing and the Consultant in Public Health.  
 
As part of the drugs and alcohol strategy, had there been an increase in 
funding and if so, what would the impact be on the service?  
 
The strategy was designed to have a larger focus on alcohol and was 
currently in its third year of funding. The strategy had also focused on the 
number of people receiving treatment services, improving outcomes for 
alcohol and drugs treatment and providing better support for those affected by 
addiction.  
 
Members discussed that residents had raised concerns with accessing the 
alcohol and drugs support services, particularly, when trying to get in touch 
with the support services.  
 
The Director of Health & Wellbeing acknowledged the comments made by the 
Committee and advised that it would be feedback to the commissioners. 
 
Members discussed different pathways for detoxification and the current 
waiting times for support.  
 
The Consultant in Public Health informed Members that there was a pathway 
for detoxification in Stoke which the strategy supported and comments would 
be feedback to the commissioners. 
 
HAC-34 Update from the JHOSC 
 
The Telford Co-Chair of the Joint Health Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
(JHOSC) provided an update to the Committee on the latest work of the 
JHOSC. This update followed the last meeting of the committee that took 
place on the 27 February 2024. The meeting focused on urgent and 
emergency care and preparedness for winter pressures across Shropshire, 
Telford and Wrekin which included an update on the progress of Virtual Wards 
following its implementation in August 2022. Representatives from the 
Shropshire, Telford & Wrekin Integrated Care System and Shropshire 
Community Health NHS Trust were present at that meeting to speak to 
Members. However, due to limited representation from external partners at 
the time of the meeting, an additional meeting of the JHOSC had been 
arranged to take place on 8 April 2024. 
 

Page 4



 

 

HAC-35 Primary Care Recovery Access Plan 
 
Members received an update from the Associate Director of Primary Care, 
Integrated Care Board Shropshire, Telford and Wrekin, on the NHS recovery 
plan for Primary Care in the Borough. Members were informed that the slides 
which formed part of the agenda pack were previously presented to the 
Telford and Wrekin Health and Wellbeing Board and included the latest 
figures. Members were informed that the focus for the next quarter was on the 
self-referral service. These services required input from health professionals 
to ensure that they were appropriate and the first scheme as part of the 
recovery plan was the pharmacy first scheme. Members were informed that all 
community pharmacists were signed up to this service. The scheme was 
currently in its second month of operation, however, figures were not ready to 
be reported on, but would be shared with the Committee once available.  
 
Another part of the recovery plan was the digitising of the telephony service 
for GPs. Members were informed that the plan scheduled for 90% of services 
to be digitally accessible by the end of March 2024. However, due to 
technological requirements and delays from practices this had extended to be 
completed by mid-April 2024. Some of the other improvements detailed in the 
plan was to increase the workforce in primary care to include paramedics and 
nurse practitioners. The overall plan was said to improve the quality of 
services in Telford and Wrekin, to allow for more GP appointments to be 
available and develop improvements for the future of primary care.  
 
Members posed the following questions:- 
 
Did the system in the NHS allow for patient records to be shared across the 
system providers? 
 
Across the system, professionals were able to see a summary of a patients 
records. However, this was not the full record and there was work to upgrade 
this on a national level. 
 
Members discussed the difficulties around getting a dentist appoint with the 
NHS and some discussed that there had been cases where residents had to 
pay for a private dentist due to necessity to see a dentist.  
 
The Associate Director of Primary Care discussed the national recovery plan 
for dentistry and highlighted that the concerns surrounding dentistry was a 
national concern. It was suggested that an update could be brought to the 
Committee. 
 
Members discussed that previously that the majority of community 
pharmacists in the area were to be largely based in Shropshire and that the 
process of becoming an independent prescriber was a long process. It was 

Page 5



 

 

discussed that following the COVID-19 Pandemic there had been a number of 
changes in the field of pharmacy such as the types of treatments available 
and the ways that certain medications were prescribed. 
 
Were there facilities under the planning process for s106 monies to be used 
for development of primary care facilities and to support existing GPs? 
 
Officers informed Members that this would be reported back to the relevant 
Planning Officers and if further information was available, this would be 
provided to the Committee. 
 
Members raised their concerns regarding advertisement of NHS schemes, 
particularly around primary care and the services in pharmacies, and 
requested further information be presented at a later meeting.  
 
Officers from the ICB advised that information would be shared with the 
Committee at a later date. 
 
Residents had raised issues with booking an appointment with a GP, why was 
this the case? 
 
The Associate Director of Primary Care, ICB, advised Members that concerns 
would be feedback as patients should be able to see a GP when required. 
 
Were the figures in the published report for both Shropshire and Telford and 
Wrekin? 
 
The figures in the published report covered both Shropshire and Telford and 
Wrekin but the figures included within the report presented at the meeting 
covered Telford. 
 
Members discussed difficulties with using the NHS app to book appointments 
and suggested   if a facility could be made available to book an appointment 
with a local GP via the app.  
 
Was the ICB looking at best practice across GP practices, both locally and 
nationally, to see how the system could be improved in Telford and Wrekin? 
 
The recovery plan looked to address differences across practices in 
Shropshire and Telford and Wrekin to determine the best approach. It was 
noted that individual practices adopted the best model and that the recovery 
plan was part of a national model of improvement. It was highlighted that there 
was a Primary Care Network forum for best practice and knowledge sharing 
across the region. 
 
Were there any national funding initiatives to support practices? 

Page 6



 

 

 
There was additional funding allocated  for the recovery plan under the ICB’s 
budget with additional investment funding for practices based on the services 
provided. This was closely monitored to track the impact the funding would 
have. 
 
HAC-36 Work Programme Review 
 
The Democracy Officer (Scrutiny) advised Members that the meeting on 25 
April 2024 would be the final meeting of the municipal year. An update on 
Pharmacy First would be included as part of the work programme and 
Members would be kept informed of any further updates. 
 
HAC-37 Chair's Update 
 
The Chair thanked Officers from both Telford & Wrekin Council and the ICB 
for attending. The Chair advised Members that there had been some 
legislative changes to the way in which Health Scrutiny Committees operate 
nationally and that a briefing would be arranged to update Members on the 
changes. 
 
The meeting ended at 3.07 pm 

 
Chairman:   

 
Date: 

 
Thursday 25 April 2024 

 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



      

Page | 1  
 

Health & Adult Social Care Scrutiny Work Programme 

Issue / Topic Brief Description Directorate Council 
Values/Priorities 

Format Meeting Comments  
 

6 July 2023 – Committee Meeting 

Terms Of 
Reference 

For the Committee to 
agree the Terms of 
Reference for 
2023/24 

Policy & 
Governance 

A community-
focussed, innovative 
council providing 
efficient, effective and 
quality services 

Committee 
Agenda Item 

Constitutional Function 
 

Outcomes: 
 
That the Terms of Reference be agreed for the 2023/24 municipal year.  

Work Programme For the Committee to 
agree the proposed 
work programme for 
2023/24 

Policy & 
Governance 

A community-
focussed, innovative 
council providing 
efficient, effective and 
quality services 

Committee 
Agenda Item 

Draft work programme delegated to 
each scrutiny committee by SMB on 
6 June 2023 

Outcomes: 
 
The draft work programme be agreed.  

Interim Report - 
Primary Care 
Access 

To review the Interim 
Report from the 
working group looking 
at access into primary 
care and consider if 
any further scrutiny is 
needed in this area  

Policy & 
Governance  

A community-
focussed, innovative 
council providing 
efficient, effective and 
quality services 

Committee 
Agenda Item 

Committee Agenda item to consider 
the Interim Report. 
 
Consideration to be given to the 
formation of a new working group to 
continue the review  

P
age 9

A
genda Item

 10



      

Page | 2  
 

 

Outcomes: Members agreed to continue the work on the Access to Primary Care working group and that subsequent sessions 
would be arranged to review Access to Primary Care. 
 
 
 

18 July 2023 – Workshop/briefing 

Virtual Wards To receive a 
presentation on virtual 
wards and how they 
are funded 

Shropshire 
Community Health 
Trust 

All neighbourhood 
are a great place to 
live 

Briefing/workshop 
item 

Informal workshop session. 
 
Shropshire Community Health Trust 
representatives will be in attendance  

Outcomes: Members received a briefing from the Shropshire Community Health Trust on the work that they had done in 
regards to virtual wards. 
 
 
 

25 July 2023 – Workshop/briefing 

Adult Social Care 
Charging Policy 

To receive a 
presentation/briefing 
on the changes to the 
Adult Social Care 
Charging Policy 

Adult Social Care Every child, young 
person and adult lives 
well in their 
community 

Briefing/workshop 
item 

Informal workshop session.   

Outcomes: Members received a briefing on the changes to the Adult Social Care Charging Policy. 

11 October 2023 – Committee Meeting 

Adult Social Care 
Charging Policy 

For the Health 
Scrutiny Committee to 
consider the 
proposed Adult Social 
Care Charging Policy 

Adult Social Care Every child, young 
person and adult lives 
well in their 
community 

Committee 
Agenda Item 

Consideration to be given to the 
proposed Adult Social Care 
Charging Policy and the opportunity 
to provide feedback. 

Outcomes: 
Member received an update on the Adult Social Care Charging Policy 
 

P
age 10



      

Page | 3  
 

19 October 2023 – Committee Meeting 

Pharmaceutical 
Services 

To receive an update 
from the ICB on the 
recent changes to 
Pharmaceutical 
services 
 

Public Health Every child, young 
person and adult lives 
well in their 
community 

Committee 
Agenda Item 

To receive an update from the NHS 
on the recent changes to 
Pharmaceutical Services in the 
Borough 

Outcomes: 
Members received a presentation from the NHS on the work of Community Pharmacies in the region. 
 

12 December 2023 – Committee Meeting 

The Better Care 
Fund 

To review how the 
Better Care Fund 
meet its outcomes for 
Health & Adult Social 
Care in the Borough 

Adult Social Care 
 

Every child, young 
person and adult lives 
well in their 
community 

Committee 
Agenda Item with 
the Committee 
asked to consider 
the formation of a 
Task and Finish 
Group 

Consideration to be given to 
formation of a working group to 
scrutinise further 
 

Outcomes: 
Members received a presentation on the Better Care Fund and hospital discharge rates in the Borough from Officers of the 
Council and the NHS. 
 

14 March 2024 – Committee Meeting 

Primary Care 
Access Recovery 
Plan  

To receive an update 
from the Integrated 
Care Board on the 
Primary Care Access 
Recovery Plan 

Public Health Every child, young 
person and adult lives 
well in their 
community 

Committee 
Agenda Item 

To receive an update from the NHS 
on the recent changes to Primary 
Care in the Borough 

Outcomes: 
Members received a report and presentation from the Associate Director: Primary Care, Integrated Care Board Shropshire, 
Telford and Wrekin. The report outlined the recovery plan for primary care in the Borough. 
 

P
age 11



      

Page | 4  
 

 

25 April 2024 – Committee Meeting 

CQC Update To receive an update 
on the upcoming 
CQC inspection  
 

Adult Social Care Every child, young 
person and adult lives 
well in their 
community 

Committee 
Agenda Item 

To receive an initial update for 
consideration of a further update 
following the formal inspection. 

Outcomes: 
 
 
 
 

Big Conversation To receive a report 
from the Integrated 
Care Board on the 
Big Conversation 
campaign. 
 

Public Health Every child, young 
person and adult lives 
well in their community 

Committee 
Agenda Item 

To receive an update from the NHS 
on the Big Conversation Campaign. 

Outcomes: 
 

Pharmacy First To receive a verbal 
update on the 
Pharmacy First 
scheme from the 
Integrated Care 
Board. 
 

Public Health Every child, young 
person and adult lives 
well in their community 

Committee 
Agenda Item 

To receive an update from the NHS 
on the Pharmacy First scheme. 

Outcomes: 
 

Communication, 
Marketing and 
Engagement in 
the NHS 

To receive a report on 
the NHS’ 
communication, 
marketing and 

Public Health Every child, young 
person and adult lives 
well in their community 

Committee 
Agenda Item 

To receive a report on the work that 
the local Integrated Care Board do 
to communicate, market and engage 

P
age 12



      

Page | 5  
 

 

engagement by the 
local Integrated Care 
Board with the 
community. 
 

with the local community in the 
Borough of Telford and Wrekin. 

Outcomes: 
 

Items to be scheduled 

Hospital discharge 
and Intermediate 
Care 

To receive an update 
on hospital discharge 
rates and 
Intermediate Care 

Adult Social Care Every child, young 
person and adult lives 
well in their 
community 

Committee Item  

Outcomes: 
 
 
 

P
age 13



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	10 Work Programme

